
Please ask for  Democratic Services DDI (01362) 656343
e-mail: democraticservices@breckland.gov.uk

AGENDA
Committee - GREATER THETFORD 

DEVELOPMENT PARTNERSHIP
Date & Time - MONDAY, 9TH APRIL, 2018 AT 

10.00 AM
Venue - THE CHARLES BURRELL CENTRE, 

STANIFORTH ROAD, THETFORD 
IP24 3LH

PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING ARE 
REQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE TELEPHONES



Greater Thetford Development Partnership
Monday, 9th April, 2018

Page(s)
herewith

1. APOLOGIES 
To note apologies of absence.

2. MINUTES AND MATTERS ARISING FROM THE BOARD MEETING 
HELD ON 16 FEBRUARY 2018 

1 - 15

To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting held on 16 February 
2018.

To receive an update on:
 Train Station Allotments
 Thetford Railway Station improvements
 Update note on regarding the growth proposals for schools in 

Thetford

3. COMMUNITIES SUB-GROUP UPDATE 16

4. CEMETERY PROVISION To Follow
Councillor Poulter will present a paper on cemetery provision within the 
new Sustainable Urban Extension housing development.

5. MARKETING AND PROMOTION 17 - 28
Roberta Willner from Norfolk County Council will present a paper 
outlining recommended approaches to marketing Greater Thetford with a 
particular emphasis on ‘Attracting Skilled Workers/Talent’.

6. FORWARD PLAN AND WORKSHOP 29 - 31
Richard Doleman, Officer Group Chairman, will present a draft forward 
plan for discussion including a proposal for a board development 
workshop.

7. GOVERNANCE 

a) Terms of reference for the new GTDP Officer Group 32 - 36 

Report of Richard Doleman, Officer Group Chairman. 

b) Recruitment of Independent community Sub-Group members 37 - 39

8. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

9. SUMMARY OF AGREED ACTIONS AND REPORT HIGHLIGHTS 

10. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
To agree a date and venue of the next meeting.



1

BRECKLAND COUNCIL

At a Meeting of the

GREATER THETFORD DEVELOPMENT PARTNERSHIP

Held on Friday, 16 February 2018 at 10.00 am in
Charles Burrell Centre, Staniforth Road, Thetford IP24 3LH

PRESENT
Mr S. H. Chapman-Allen (SCA)
Mr R. F. W. Brame (RB)
Mr T. J. Jermy (TJ)

Mr R. King (RK)
Mr A. M.  Poulter (TP)

In Attendance
Robert Campbell (RC) - Inward Investment Manager
David Cumming (DC) - Interim Team Leader - Transport
Ms Tina Cunnell (DC) - Thetford Town Clerk
Richard Doleman (RD) - Development & Planning Transport Team 

Leader
Jan Munn (JM) - Lead Adviser - Education Participation, 

Infrastructure & Partnership Services
Stephen James (SJ) - Communities Manager
Teresa Smith - Democratic Services Team Leader

Action By

1/18 APOLOGIES 

An apology was received from Rob Walker, Executive Director of 
Place for Breckland Council.

2/18 MINUTES AND MATTERS ARISING FROM 15 DECEMBER 
2017 

RWh asked for an amendment to minute ref: 14/18 (para 6) to say 
“ RWh said Section 106 funding had been allocated for the 
provision of healthcare, however the funding would not be 
released until later phases of the development’.

TJ informed the board that he had had a useful conversation with 
the Town Council with regards to moving allotments to a suitable 
venue and consideration for access to the north end of the rail 
station and would devise a plan of action.

Subject to the above amendment, the minutes of the meeting held 
on 15 December 2017 were agreed.

3/18 THETFORD TRANSPORT NETWORK IMPROVEMENT 
STRATEGY 

Mr Cumming gave a presentation to the Board.  He explained that 
Members of the Environmental Development and Transport 

Public Document Pack

1

Agenda Item 2



Greater Thetford Development Partnership
16 February 2018

2

Action By

Committee had agreed to five studies per year, with a budget of 
£20,000 per study, of which Thetford was one of them.

It was anticipated that the scope of the transport study would be 
completed by September 2018 and would be in three parts.  Part 
one would consider the current transport issues, cycle, parking, 
traffic and access to services and facilities.
Part two would look at the future growth, and part three would 
cover the implementation plan that would identify appropriate 
interventions; determine priorities and timescales for delivery.

A workshop was due to take place with stakeholders and 
neighbouring parishes to gain feedback and discuss current 
issues.

BK asked how far the market town study would cover, particularly 
with speeding issues.  Whilst it focussed on the town it would also 
take into account the planned areas of growth.  Members were 
also encouraged to feedback if there were concerns of speeding in 
specific areas.

TJ, a Member of the Environmental Development and Transport 
Committee was pleased to see the project come to fruition.  He 
mentioned that he had asked on social media for feedback with 
regard to the transport issues and received constructive 
comments and forwarded them to Mr Cumming.  He went onto say 
that the reason for the study was for the growth of the town and 
hoped the study would consider the increase usage of public 
transport.  However it was noted the train station did not have 
sufficient parking facilities, disabled access and the use of push-
chairs was not easy.  In addition there were not adequate facilities 
at the bus station, such as waiting information and provision of 
refreshments.  He added the connectivity of the town was 
important and consideration should be given to improve the traffic 
flow around the south of the town.

RWh was pleased to see cycling would be included in the study, 
and informed the Board that the Community Sub-Group had 
prepared a draft report on cycling and walking routes around the 
town.  

ACTION – RWh to send a copy of the report to Mr 
Cumming so it can feed into the study.

TP asked if the study would include the A11 junctions.  The 
Chairman informed the Board that at a recent Norfolk Leaders 
meeting it was agreed Norfolk would sign up to be part of a 
stakeholder group that was considering the A11 be upgraded to 
an express-way.

TP sought clarification of where the study would be recorded.  The 
Chairman confirmed that the scoping piece of work formed the first 
phase and that once Norfolk County Council ratified the scope in 
Autumn this year, it would then move onto the delivery plan.

RWh

2



Greater Thetford Development Partnership
16 February 2018

3

Action By

RD added there would be short, medium and long term investment 
priorities that would form the strategy. 

A member of the public asked if there had been any consideration 
for maintenance to the A11, specifically with pot-holes.  In addition 
if any near misses had been recorded in statistics that had been 
provided.  He also asked if the Board were aware of the North Sea 
Commission who provided funding for infrastructure.  Mr Cumming 
responded by confirming that maintenance would not be covered 
specifically within the scope unless there were particular issues.  
In terms of the casualties, police records did not include near miss 
details.  He went onto ask if there were funding opportunities 
available then to forward the details onto Norfolk County Council.

Councillor Robinson asked that the study considers the Croxton 
Road junction as it can be heavily congested at times.  

It was also asked that consideration was given to those that used 
motor-scooters as dropped kerbs were an issue.  Mr Cummings 
welcomed the feedback and said he was keen to hear of particular 
problem areas.

The Board Members agreed to the recommendation and were 
asked to provide feedback and information to David Cummings by 
9 March 2018.  (david.cumming@norfolk.gov.uk) 

4/18 EDUCATIONAL STANDARDS 

Jan Munn, Lead Adviser – Education Participation, Infrastructure 
and Partnerships Services presented her report to the Board.  It 
was highlighted that a new Academy Trust (Eastern MAT) had 
come into Thetford which included Diamond and Queensway 
academies.  It was important to note that the schools in the area 
were working very hard to deliver good outcomes for children and 
it was noted that there were inconsistencies within the data 
provided.

Norfolk County Council were working alongside the academy 
trusts and clusters on a project to identify how new growth in 
Thetford would be accommodated in order to enable the schools 
to continue to deliver their core purpose.

The Board was informed that consideration was being given to the 
original suggestion of moving the current Raleigh infant school to 
the new site.  Further detail would be presented to a future 
meeting of the Board.

ACTION: Jan Munn would gather further information 
on the indication of growth proposals, and when the 
new site would be available.

TJ thanked the Officer for the report and felt that the Board should 
recognise that the new growth could impact on the acceleration of 
standards for the schools across Thetford.  Whilst he understood 

JM

3

mailto:david.cumming@norfolk.gov.uk


Greater Thetford Development Partnership
16 February 2018

4

Action By

the significant issues within Thetford schools he felt that there was 
not enough support staff employed to assist with these issues.

RB felt that as the structure of the Board and Officer group had 
recently changed it would allow those involved to keep ahead and 
updated regularly to ensure the new school was delivered 
effectively.

The Chairman said that social mobility was an issue and within 
Thetford there were hotspots on attainment figures.  He asked if 
there was an action plan to support primary schools, and what 
were the future aspirations to ensure that the right Academy trust 
is sought.  It was confirmed that if it was a Local Authority School 
who received an outstanding Ofsted report then there would be a 
light touch approach from Norfolk County Council.  With regard to 
social mobility there were a number of key indicators that would fit 
into this, so would work closely with the schools on this.  A similar 
project was underway within another part of the County where key 
areas had been identified.  

The Chairman confirmed the board would be delighted to support 
where it could and would replicate the model used within Kings 
Lynn.  

ACTION: The officer group to consider this and report 
back to the Board.

Councillor Robinson said he would like to see more post 16’s 
having access to higher education and felt that not all 
opportunities were signposted for the youth.  

Councillor Hollis was concerned that the local bus that used to 
take children across Thetford had now stopped, many of whom 
now had to walk along the Croxton Road which was not safe.  

ACTION: JM to feed this information back to County 
Councillors.

The Chairman asked that the schools and communities 
understood that the Board understood the issues, and it was about 
sharing information to move forward.

ACTION: JM to feedback to the Board once she has 
spoken to the clusters.

Officer 
Group

JM

JM

5/18 MARKET TOWN INITIATIVE 

The Communities Manager from Breckland Council presented the 
report to the Board.

Breckland Council had met with Thetford Town Council to discuss 
what the Market Town Initiative could mean to the town as 
discussion was important in terms of what the town had now and 
could look like in the future.  It was apparent that the heritage of 
Thetford was important and there was a keenness to develop this 

4



Greater Thetford Development Partnership
16 February 2018

5

Action By

so Thetford could been seen as a heritage destination.  
Discussions were underway with the Heritage Lottery Fund to 
submit a smaller bid to enable the development of this theme 
further.

A new initiative was underway called Shopappy, which would work 
alongside retailers to allow the community to shop locally and 
protect local businesses

A new urban vacuum cleaner had been purchased which will 
enable larger areas to be cleaned more effectively, and this would 
be used within the Town to improve the appearance of the town 
centre.

RB asked if it would be beneficial for the Board to put forward a 
letter to the Heritage Lottery Fund in support of the bid.  The 
Board were in agreement with this.

ACTION:  Letter to be written in support of the bid to 
Heritage Lottery Fund. 

BK clarified that whilst in principle the Board supports the bid, it 
would be preferred if the bid could be seen before the letter was 
sent.

TJ said that the Market Town Initiative was really encouraging and 
should not overlook the skills already within Breckland and should 
engage in existing services to enhance sustainability in what it is 
trying to achieve.

A member of the public asked if it would be possible to see in 
greater detail what the heritage grant would look like.  RWh 
informed the Board that he would share the bid with the 
Community Sub-Group once he had seen sight of it.

ACTION: SJ to check with Rob Walker if the bid to the 
HLF can be viewed publically.

The content of the report was noted by the Board.

Officer 
Group

SJ

6/18 LITTLE OUSE WATERSPACE STUDY 

The Thetford Town Clerk, presented the report to the Board.  The 
report asked for support from the Board in order to seek further 
funding.

The Chairman added that he was excited to see the energy and 
enthusiasm of the Waterspace study launch that had picked up 
pace since its launch, and saluted the Town Council for the work it 
had put in so far.  It would be life changing for Thetford going 
forward allowing the town to become a destination of choice.  He 
added that he was more than happy for the Board to be involved.

RB added that if the river became in use it would be a major 

5



Greater Thetford Development Partnership
16 February 2018

6

Action By

development for the town and would like to see the Board become 
proactive, through the Sub-Group, to show the residents of 
Thetford what could be done.

RWh asked if the Officer Group could consider the river frontage 
on the opposite side to the cinema, and if this could be improved. 
The Town Clerk confirmed that it was a shared space between a 
number of parties, however the project plan would need to follow 
phases and ensure the process was completed in a sense of 
order.

The Chairman added that the project was still in its infancy and 
further details would become clearer at a later date.

ACTION: Town Clerk and Cllr Wright to attend the next 
meeting of the Community Sub-Group to inform them 
of how the work is progressing and future plans.

The Board agreed with the recommendations and would produce 
an open letter of support which could be used to support funding 
applications.

ACTION:  Open Letter to be written in support of the 
Little Ouse project.

TC/Cllr W

Officer 
Group

7/18 A11 THETFORD JUNCTIONS 

RD asked the Board what it could do to help promote the issues of 
the A11 junction to help lobby for further investment.  The A11 had 
an enhanced route but was subject to congestion and whilst the 
planned new development would provide some changes to those 
junctions this would be longer term.  He suggested the Board write 
to Highways England to begin to consider the long term 
aspirations.

The Chairman recommended that the Board agree to write to 
Highways England as it would show unified working.

TJ said whilst it was a long term aim, he was hoping some quick 
wins could be carried out such as the sheer quantity of litter that 
was around especially on the roundabout as you entered Thetford. 

RB added that the roundabouts appeared unkempt and felt that 
they could look better.  

BK commented that the Parishes used to undertake litter-picks 
however now they are required to go to an outsourced company 
and sign a form.  The Breckland Communities Manager confirmed 
that the litter picking equipment had been moved to the Market 
Towns, and a form was required to be signed so that it ensured 
that those undertaking the litter picking were covered under the 
Breckland Insurance.

The Town Clerk asked if bulbs could be planted on the 
roundabouts.  It was confirmed that the roundabouts were the 

6



Greater Thetford Development Partnership
16 February 2018

7

Action By

responsibility of Highways England, however this question could 
be asked of them.

It was agreed that a letter would be sent to invite Highways 
England to attend a Board meeting.

ACTION:  Letter to be written to Highways England. Officer 
Group

8/18 IMPROVEMENTS TO THETFORD RAILWAY STATION 

DC was aware of the long standing concerns of provision at the 
Railway Station.  The Station was operated by Greater Anglia, 
who had access to funding and suggested the Board write to 
Greater Anglia inviting them to a future meeting of the Board to 
listen to the concerns and suggest ways forward.

TJ added that it would be useful for the board to write to the Town 
Council to consider moving the allotment which would allow 
access to additional parking.

RWh thanked the Board for considering this item, and  said he had 
met with Greater Anglia in July 2017, who said they had no 
funding for the improvements.   

The Town Clerk said that it would consider if suitable land could 
be found to increase the allotment provision and release the land 
for additional parking.

The Breckland Inward Invest Manager suggested that enough 
time was given to allow the Officer group to consider timetables 
and a project plan.

TJ added that Railway Infrastructure had been recently covered by 
the Environmental and Transport Committee at Norfolk County 
Council and this should be shared with the Board.

ACTION: DC to share the report with the GTDP Board.

It was agreed that the Board will forward a letter to Greater Anglia 
inviting them to a future meeting of the Board.

ACTION: Letter to be written to Greater Anglia.

DC

Officer 
Group

9/18 GOVERNANCE 

 (a) Officers Group  

RD set out the report to the Board explaining the proposals for a 
revised officer group to support the Board and recommended a 
fresh approach.

The Chairman added that he was in support of the proposals as 
it allowed all Officers across all parties to work in partnership 
and bring appropriate papers to the Board, allowing the Board to 

7



Greater Thetford Development Partnership
16 February 2018

8

Action By

have a formal approach and direction of travel.  It would allow 
more control for the partners to share issues effectively and 
suitably respond to issues.

Following a discussion, the members of the Board were in 
agreement to the proposed changes.

It was AGREED that the proposed principles set out in the report 
were approved and would be developed into a formal Terms of 
Reference for consideration at the next Board meeting. 

ACTION: Terms of Reference to be presented at the 
next Board meeting.

Officer 
Group

 (b) Communities Sub-Group Terms of Reference  

The Chairman explained that the Communities Sub-Group 
Terms of Reference should be bought into line with the Boards 
terms of reference and be reviewed annually.  It was requested 
that the Sub-Group’s Terms of Reference should be reviewed 
each May where the membership of the independent members 
would be reviewed if appropriate to do so.

RWh said the overall make-up of the Group worked well, but it 
was a question of how independent members were appointed 
that needed addressing which was not clear in the original terms 
of reference.  He suggested that this should be discussed at the 
next meeting of the Sub-Group and bring the feedback back to 
the Board.

The Chairman added that the role of the independent member 
should be advertised appropriately.  The applications would be 
reviewed by a representative from a Board Member; the town; 
parish of Brettenham and Kilverstone; and Parish of Croxton.

11/18 LEP REPRESENTATION 

It was agreed that the Chairman would ask for a representative 
from the Local Enterprise Partnership to sit on the Board, as this 
worked effectively for the Attleborough Development Partnership.  
RC would also ask for a representative on the Officer Group for 
the same reasons.

ACTION:  contact the New Anglia LEP representation. RC

12/18 FORWARD PLAN 

The following items would be added to the GTDP Board Forward 
Plan:

 Health – any questions should be forwarded to RD 
(Richard.Doleman@norfolk.gov.uk)  in order for the health 
representatives to be prepared for their attendance at a 
future Board meeting.

8

mailto:Richard.Doleman@norfolk.gov.uk


Greater Thetford Development Partnership
16 February 2018

9

Action By

 Thetford Brand – the Town Clerk had said she had been 
working on branding particularly with the Thetford Heritage.  
This should also include work on how to attract skilled 
workers to Thetford.

 Communication – the communication plans would be 
refreshed in time for the next Board meeting.  

 Cemeteries – TP would report back to the next Board 
meeting once he had spoken to the developers, Pigeon.

 Governance Terms of Reference – to be refreshed
 Educational Update – further information on when the new 

site would be operational.
 Responses from letters written to the Highways, Greater 

Anglia and the LEP.

13/18 THETFORD SUE AND TEP 

Positive news had recently been received that the bid for 
infrastructure through the HCA had been successful.  This gave 
Thetford a strong position in regards to economic growth and its 
future.

The planning application from Hopkins Homes had been received 
by the Planning Authority and would be heard at a future meeting 
of the Planning Committee.

The current timetable for the completion of the new TEP 
roundabout is June 2019.

14/18 COMMUNITIES SUB GROUP 

RWh presented the report highlighting that the main issue he had 
discovered was passengers could not use their railcard to 
purchase a ticket travelling towards  Norwich, and was felt to be 
unfair.  

RWh will forward the health concerns raised by the Sub-Group to 
Richard Doleman.

RWh asked the Board to update the integrated Delivery Plan to 
enable the Sub-group to plan ahead.

The Cycling and Walking Routes report was in draft format and 
would welcome feedback from the Board members.  DC asked to 
see a copy of the report, and would attend a future meeting of the 
Sub-Group to discuss the report in more detail.

The Chairman added his thanks to the Sub-Group for the report.

RD asked the Sub-Group to produce a list of recommendations 
they would like the Board to consider, which would help him run 
the Officer Group.  RWh said he did not have anything to add at 
the minute other than requesting support to write to East Midlands 
Trains with regards to the query of the price of train tickets bought 
on the train.

9



Greater Thetford Development Partnership
16 February 2018

10

Action By

The Chairman said he would like to see a joined up approach, and 
asked RWh to prepare the letter and send to the Chairman for 
forwarding on.

ACTION: RWh to prepare the letter to East Midlands 
Trains, and forward onto the Chairman to send on 
behalf of the Board.

RWh

15/18 SUMMARY OF AGREED MAIN ACTIONS AND REPORT 
HIGHLIGHTS 

 Update on discussions with academy clusters.

 Letter to be sent in support of the Heritage Lottery Fund

 Letter of support to be sent with regard to future funding of 
the Little Ouse project.

 Letter to Highways England.  

 Letter to Greater Anglia. 

 Town Council to update the Board on the Allotments at the 
Railway Station.

16/18 ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

None.

17/18 DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

The date of the next meeting was scheduled for Monday 9 April 
2018 at 10:00am, venue to be confirmed.

18/18 HIGHLIGHT REPORT 

The meeting closed at 1.30 pm

CHAIRMAN

10



Highlight Report – Friday 15 February 2018

 Following the presentation on Education Standards from Norfolk County Council, a further written 
update will be provided for the next Board meeting.

 As part of discussions around the new Market Town Initiative, the Board agreed to provide a letter 
of support for the Heritage Lottery Bid which is being prepared.

 Following discussions about a report presented on the Little Ouse Waterspace Study, the Board 
agreed to provide a letter of support for the Little Ouse Project.

 Following discussions about a report presented on the A11 junctions serving Thetford, the Board 
agreed to write to Highways England to seek discussions on improvements to the A11 Thetford 
junctions.

 Following discussions about a report presented on Thetford Railway station, the Board agreed to 
write to Greater Anglia to seek discussions on desired improvements to Thetford Railway station.

 The Town Council has agreed to provide an update to the Board on the status of the allotments 
sited next to the Railway Station.

11

Minute Item 18

11



Greater Thetford Development Partnership Board
9 April 2018

THETFORD RAILWAY STATION CAR PARKING
Tina Cunnell Town Clerk Thetford Town Council

Update Note

In February 2018 the GTDP Board suggested that Thetford Town Council be 
contacted to consider moving the Munford Road Allotments as a possible 
means of providing additional parking at the railway station.

Thetford Town Council has commenced work to identify land that could be 
used for allotments.  Progress so far has identified that the Town Council do 
not own any suitable land.  The Town Council have also contacted the County 
Council and Breckland Council to see if they own any land that may be suitable 
for use as allotments.

Work is still in progress, so far 2 sites have been identified, 
• Charles Burrell Centre (currently leased to TTC)
• Closed Elm Road Centre

TTC are continuing to investigate possible sites and feasibility of using the 
existing site at Mundford Road for car parking.

12



Greater Thetford Development Partnership Board

9th April 2018

THETFORD RAILWAY STATION

Robert Campbell, Officer Group

Update Note

As agreed at the last board meeting, a letter has been sent to Greater Anglia requesting discussions 
concerning how improvements to Thetford Railway Station can be achieved.  Officers from the 
Officer Group will follow this up to establish contact and seek an initial meeting.

Reference was made at the previous Broad meeting of a paper produced by Norfolk County Council 
which updates on Strategic Rail Issues.

The website link to download the report follows:-

http://norfolkcc.cmis.uk.com/NorfolkCC/Document.ashx?czJKcaeAi5tUFL1DTL2UE4zNRBcoShgo=ig%
2barYMo8KYL3ouXo%2bj1kBzW1xz0v7HVv5MqWl0cOpWha6WVdZj5hw%3d%3d&rUzwRPf%2bZ3zd
4E7Ikn8Lyw%3d%3d=pwRE6AGJFLDNlh225F5QMaQWCtPHwdhUfCZ%2fLUQzgA2uL5jNRG4jdQ%3d%
3d&mCTIbCubSFfXsDGW9IXnlg%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&kCx1AnS9%2fpWZQ40DXFvdEw%3d%3d
=hFflUdN3100%3d&uJovDxwdjMPoYv%2bAJvYtyA%3d%3d=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&FgPlIEJYlotS%2bYGoBi
5olA%3d%3d=NHdURQburHA%3d&d9Qjj0ag1Pd993jsyOJqFvmyB7X0CSQK=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGew
moAfeNR9xqBux0r1Q8Za60lavYmz=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNQ16B2MHuCpMRKZMwaG1Pa
O=ctNJFf55vVA%3d

13

http://norfolkcc.cmis.uk.com/NorfolkCC/Document.ashx?czJKcaeAi5tUFL1DTL2UE4zNRBcoShgo=ig%2barYMo8KYL3ouXo%2bj1kBzW1xz0v7HVv5MqWl0cOpWha6WVdZj5hw%3d%3d&rUzwRPf%2bZ3zd4E7Ikn8Lyw%3d%3d=pwRE6AGJFLDNlh225F5QMaQWCtPHwdhUfCZ%2fLUQzgA2uL5jNRG4jdQ%3d%3d&mCTIbCubSFfXsDGW9IXnlg%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&kCx1AnS9%2fpWZQ40DXFvdEw%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&uJovDxwdjMPoYv%2bAJvYtyA%3d%3d=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&FgPlIEJYlotS%2bYGoBi5olA%3d%3d=NHdURQburHA%3d&d9Qjj0ag1Pd993jsyOJqFvmyB7X0CSQK=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNR9xqBux0r1Q8Za60lavYmz=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNQ16B2MHuCpMRKZMwaG1PaO=ctNJFf55vVA%3d
http://norfolkcc.cmis.uk.com/NorfolkCC/Document.ashx?czJKcaeAi5tUFL1DTL2UE4zNRBcoShgo=ig%2barYMo8KYL3ouXo%2bj1kBzW1xz0v7HVv5MqWl0cOpWha6WVdZj5hw%3d%3d&rUzwRPf%2bZ3zd4E7Ikn8Lyw%3d%3d=pwRE6AGJFLDNlh225F5QMaQWCtPHwdhUfCZ%2fLUQzgA2uL5jNRG4jdQ%3d%3d&mCTIbCubSFfXsDGW9IXnlg%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&kCx1AnS9%2fpWZQ40DXFvdEw%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&uJovDxwdjMPoYv%2bAJvYtyA%3d%3d=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&FgPlIEJYlotS%2bYGoBi5olA%3d%3d=NHdURQburHA%3d&d9Qjj0ag1Pd993jsyOJqFvmyB7X0CSQK=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNR9xqBux0r1Q8Za60lavYmz=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNQ16B2MHuCpMRKZMwaG1PaO=ctNJFf55vVA%3d
http://norfolkcc.cmis.uk.com/NorfolkCC/Document.ashx?czJKcaeAi5tUFL1DTL2UE4zNRBcoShgo=ig%2barYMo8KYL3ouXo%2bj1kBzW1xz0v7HVv5MqWl0cOpWha6WVdZj5hw%3d%3d&rUzwRPf%2bZ3zd4E7Ikn8Lyw%3d%3d=pwRE6AGJFLDNlh225F5QMaQWCtPHwdhUfCZ%2fLUQzgA2uL5jNRG4jdQ%3d%3d&mCTIbCubSFfXsDGW9IXnlg%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&kCx1AnS9%2fpWZQ40DXFvdEw%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&uJovDxwdjMPoYv%2bAJvYtyA%3d%3d=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&FgPlIEJYlotS%2bYGoBi5olA%3d%3d=NHdURQburHA%3d&d9Qjj0ag1Pd993jsyOJqFvmyB7X0CSQK=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNR9xqBux0r1Q8Za60lavYmz=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNQ16B2MHuCpMRKZMwaG1PaO=ctNJFf55vVA%3d
http://norfolkcc.cmis.uk.com/NorfolkCC/Document.ashx?czJKcaeAi5tUFL1DTL2UE4zNRBcoShgo=ig%2barYMo8KYL3ouXo%2bj1kBzW1xz0v7HVv5MqWl0cOpWha6WVdZj5hw%3d%3d&rUzwRPf%2bZ3zd4E7Ikn8Lyw%3d%3d=pwRE6AGJFLDNlh225F5QMaQWCtPHwdhUfCZ%2fLUQzgA2uL5jNRG4jdQ%3d%3d&mCTIbCubSFfXsDGW9IXnlg%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&kCx1AnS9%2fpWZQ40DXFvdEw%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&uJovDxwdjMPoYv%2bAJvYtyA%3d%3d=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&FgPlIEJYlotS%2bYGoBi5olA%3d%3d=NHdURQburHA%3d&d9Qjj0ag1Pd993jsyOJqFvmyB7X0CSQK=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNR9xqBux0r1Q8Za60lavYmz=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNQ16B2MHuCpMRKZMwaG1PaO=ctNJFf55vVA%3d
http://norfolkcc.cmis.uk.com/NorfolkCC/Document.ashx?czJKcaeAi5tUFL1DTL2UE4zNRBcoShgo=ig%2barYMo8KYL3ouXo%2bj1kBzW1xz0v7HVv5MqWl0cOpWha6WVdZj5hw%3d%3d&rUzwRPf%2bZ3zd4E7Ikn8Lyw%3d%3d=pwRE6AGJFLDNlh225F5QMaQWCtPHwdhUfCZ%2fLUQzgA2uL5jNRG4jdQ%3d%3d&mCTIbCubSFfXsDGW9IXnlg%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&kCx1AnS9%2fpWZQ40DXFvdEw%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&uJovDxwdjMPoYv%2bAJvYtyA%3d%3d=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&FgPlIEJYlotS%2bYGoBi5olA%3d%3d=NHdURQburHA%3d&d9Qjj0ag1Pd993jsyOJqFvmyB7X0CSQK=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNR9xqBux0r1Q8Za60lavYmz=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNQ16B2MHuCpMRKZMwaG1PaO=ctNJFf55vVA%3d
http://norfolkcc.cmis.uk.com/NorfolkCC/Document.ashx?czJKcaeAi5tUFL1DTL2UE4zNRBcoShgo=ig%2barYMo8KYL3ouXo%2bj1kBzW1xz0v7HVv5MqWl0cOpWha6WVdZj5hw%3d%3d&rUzwRPf%2bZ3zd4E7Ikn8Lyw%3d%3d=pwRE6AGJFLDNlh225F5QMaQWCtPHwdhUfCZ%2fLUQzgA2uL5jNRG4jdQ%3d%3d&mCTIbCubSFfXsDGW9IXnlg%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&kCx1AnS9%2fpWZQ40DXFvdEw%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&uJovDxwdjMPoYv%2bAJvYtyA%3d%3d=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&FgPlIEJYlotS%2bYGoBi5olA%3d%3d=NHdURQburHA%3d&d9Qjj0ag1Pd993jsyOJqFvmyB7X0CSQK=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNR9xqBux0r1Q8Za60lavYmz=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNQ16B2MHuCpMRKZMwaG1PaO=ctNJFf55vVA%3d
http://norfolkcc.cmis.uk.com/NorfolkCC/Document.ashx?czJKcaeAi5tUFL1DTL2UE4zNRBcoShgo=ig%2barYMo8KYL3ouXo%2bj1kBzW1xz0v7HVv5MqWl0cOpWha6WVdZj5hw%3d%3d&rUzwRPf%2bZ3zd4E7Ikn8Lyw%3d%3d=pwRE6AGJFLDNlh225F5QMaQWCtPHwdhUfCZ%2fLUQzgA2uL5jNRG4jdQ%3d%3d&mCTIbCubSFfXsDGW9IXnlg%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&kCx1AnS9%2fpWZQ40DXFvdEw%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&uJovDxwdjMPoYv%2bAJvYtyA%3d%3d=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&FgPlIEJYlotS%2bYGoBi5olA%3d%3d=NHdURQburHA%3d&d9Qjj0ag1Pd993jsyOJqFvmyB7X0CSQK=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNR9xqBux0r1Q8Za60lavYmz=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNQ16B2MHuCpMRKZMwaG1PaO=ctNJFf55vVA%3d
http://norfolkcc.cmis.uk.com/NorfolkCC/Document.ashx?czJKcaeAi5tUFL1DTL2UE4zNRBcoShgo=ig%2barYMo8KYL3ouXo%2bj1kBzW1xz0v7HVv5MqWl0cOpWha6WVdZj5hw%3d%3d&rUzwRPf%2bZ3zd4E7Ikn8Lyw%3d%3d=pwRE6AGJFLDNlh225F5QMaQWCtPHwdhUfCZ%2fLUQzgA2uL5jNRG4jdQ%3d%3d&mCTIbCubSFfXsDGW9IXnlg%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&kCx1AnS9%2fpWZQ40DXFvdEw%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&uJovDxwdjMPoYv%2bAJvYtyA%3d%3d=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&FgPlIEJYlotS%2bYGoBi5olA%3d%3d=NHdURQburHA%3d&d9Qjj0ag1Pd993jsyOJqFvmyB7X0CSQK=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNR9xqBux0r1Q8Za60lavYmz=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNQ16B2MHuCpMRKZMwaG1PaO=ctNJFf55vVA%3d


Greater Thetford Development Partnership Board 

Update regarding the growth proposals for schools in Thetford. 

The following extract is taken from the Local Growth and Investment Plan that is reported to 
Members at Children’s Services Committee in January 2018.  Clearly this is a snapshot in time 
and things do change.  The Reserved Matters application has now been submitted (Latest 
Assessment of Growth Section) but all other comments currently remain the same.  As soon as we 
are in a position to provide further details regarding the timescales for a new school I will bring 
another update to the Board. 

Sustainable Urban Extension (SUE) of 5000 new dwellings

CURRENT LOCAL PROVISION – capacity and organisation
Existing primary phase provision in Thetford remains a mix of infant/junior and all -through 
primary. There are currently 12 forms of entry (360 places) at reception with just a few spare 
places in the September 2017 admissions round. Pupil forecasts indicate some stability in pupil 
numbers over the next few years until new housing begins to yield pupils.

There is a range of academy providers – Inspiration Trust, Eastern Multi Academy Trust and 
Diocese of Norwich Academy Trust (DNEAT) as well as Local Authority Maintained schools. 
Pursuing NCC’s policy of moving to all-through primary schools would be achievable in Thetford 
and we are considering options when related to growth infrastructure.

At secondary phase a single high school serves the Town with capacity to accept additional forms 
of entry until the SUE is well under way. The high school is capable of expansion on its existing 
site when additional places are required.

LATEST ASSESSMENT OF GROWTH
Sites for three new 420 place primary schools have been secured. It is expected that a Reserved 
Matters application for the first sub-phase of 300+ homes which includes the site for the first 
primary school will be submitted shortly. Children’s Services have been working with the land 
promoters and agreed the new school position on the site and the infrastructure requirements. The 
Children’s Services capital budget will need to underwrite the cost of this first school until 
developer contributions come through.

CURRENT PRESSURES ON PUPIL NUMBERS
Without the impact of further housing, pupil numbers are stable and places are available across 
the town for local children. 

IMPACT OF HOUSING GROWTH
The first phasing of housing will impact immediately on primary pupil places.
Discussions with local schools/Trusts is underway and our initial findings are that places are 
available.

SHORT TERM RESPONSE
Continue to work with the land promoters towards the transfer of the first new school site to NCC. 
A presumption route to decide who will run this school will be the next step. Diversity of provision 
and school organisation must be considered.

MEDIUM/LONGER TERM RESPONSE
Longer term, the three new 420 place primary schools for Thetford will meet the need in the 
current Local Plan to 2026. Timescales for these schools depend entirely on the progress rate of 
the new housing in Thetford.

14



Places will be monitored at Thetford Academy as additional land has already been provided to 
allow for future expansion and S106 contributions have been secured.

Jan Munn – Lead Adviser Education and Strategy – Education Participation Infrastructure 
and Partnership Service – jan.munn@norfolk.gov.uk

15



Community Sub-Group Report
GTDP Board Meeting Monday 9th April 2018

Since the previous Board Meeting on 16th February, the Sub-Group has met once on 21st March.
Full details are available at http://www.gtdp.org.uk/community-subgroup. Particular items of
interest for the Board are listed below.

Public Concerns

A number of matters were brought up by the public at the Sub-Group meeting:

• There was widespread concern about the new charges for disposing of DIY waste at NCC
Recycling Centres (https://www.norfolk.gov.uk/diywaste). The meeting felt that the
charges were a false economy, as they were likely to lead to increases in fly-tipping and in non-
recyclable household waste. Breckland Council will be monitoring both for detrimental effects
of the new policy. The Sub-Group asks the Board to consider writing formally to Breckland
and Norfolk Councils expressing the public’s concern over the new charges.

• There was general unhappiness at the change-of-use application (3PL/2018/0227/F) to allow
a new gym to open in three of the empty units by the cinema, as this was a deviation
from the original vision of cafés and restaurants at the site. The Sub-Group agreed to write
to Breckland Council with a list of specific questions about this matter.

• A couple of people reported that they thought some repairs to potholes in the town were
of a poor standard and would not last long. One person had tried to report this via the
NCC website, but had not been able to get anywhere as they were not currently potholes.

Communication

The Board meeting highlights and minutes were both late again, and the GTDP website is also quite
out of date in several places. This needs to be improved to help public engagement. It is hoped
that the previously promised Communications Paper will finally be presented at this meeting.
We hope there will be a positive response to the Community Sub-Group’s previous suggestion that
the Planning & Projects Sub-Group’s Integrated Delivery Plan is revived and updated.

Cycling and Walking Routes Report

An updated draft of the draft Cycling and Walking Routes Report should be available by the
meeting from http://www.gtdp.org.uk/cycling-walking. We would be grateful for any input or
feedback from Board members and the public. David Cumming from NCC Highways has agreed to
meet to discuss available resources and how the report actions would be best presented, but a date
has not yet been set.

Robert Whittaker
GTDP Community Sub-Group Chair
28-Mar-2018

1 16

Agenda Item 3

http://www.gtdp.org.uk/community-subgroup
https://www.norfolk.gov.uk/diywaste
https://goo.gl/u45muT
http://www.gtdp.org.uk/cycling-walking


Greater Thetford Development Partnership Board
9 April 2018
Item No. XX             

Marketing & Promotion

Report of Roberta Willner, Officer Group

Summary
This report presents the opportunity to deliver a marketing campaign to raise Greater 
Thetford’s profile with a primary aim to attract skilled workers to Thetford. Any 
proposed activity will align with current wider campaigns.

Recommendations 

(i) It is recommended that the GTDP lead on the development and delivery of a 
marketing campaign targeted at attracting skilled workers to relocate to 
Thetford. The campaign will also be aiming to attract business investment, 
supporting wider Cambridge Norwich Tech Corridor and Locate:Norfolk 
initiatives.
    

(ii) If the Board is supportive, a full marketing and promotion business case can 
be presented at a future Board meeting for consideration.  

1. Introduction

1.1 The Greater Thetford Development Partnership Officer’s Group has identified that 
there are a number of significant opportunities associated with Thetford’s growth plans 
and infrastructure improvements. Those opportunities can assist in attracting 
investment and businesses to the area, as well as attracting more skilled people to 
locate to Thetford.

1.2 A discussion took place at the GTDP Officer Group meeting on 23 February, where 
officers agreed that a marketing campaign, targeted at attracting skilled workers to the 
area was desirable. Opportunities exist to promote Thetford’s growth plans, new sites, 
infrastructure improvements, as well as existing Heritage and leisure attractions. If the 
GTDP Board see added value in such a campaign, the GTDP Officer Group will bring 
back a fully costed business case, drawing on existing partnerships and business 
networks for support.

2. Officer Group Proposals
2.1 Considering the significant growth and associated opportunities, the GTDP Officer’s 

Group would like to recommend a targeted marketing campaign is launched, with the 
focus of attracting skilled workers to live in Thetford. It is anticipated many will live in 
Thetford to commute to larger economic centres, but we will also promote the job 
opportunities in and around Thetford, with the ambition to attract more talent to work 
for local businesses.

17

Agenda Item 5



2.2 The opportunities associated with great connectivity, allocated employment sites with 
development opportunities, combined with existing business clusters and networks 
also presents Thetford as an investable location for businesses. It is important that 
Thetford’s connectivity, low cost base and development opportunities are 
communicated effectively to potential investors as part of the campaign.

2.3 The marketing campaign will need to be targeted to ensure impact. It is suggested the 
Cambridge Norwich Tech Corridor is used as the lead brand for the campaign, as an 
established brand with wider support, although this can be assessed as part of a full 
business case for the campaign.

2.4 In order to focus the campaign, five main messages need to be promoted:

1. Location – proximity to economic centres, travel to work time
2. Low cost base and housing growth – cost comparisons, housing in Thetford 
3. Lifestyle offer – Thetford forest, Center Parcs, heritage offer, educational 

institutes, facilities, Cinema, river, amenities – rail & bus networks etc. 
4. Business Clusters, networks and business hubs
5. Development opportunities – employment sites

2.5 Potential vehicles for promotion of the campaign will need to be assessed as part of 
the business case, but are likely to include:

 Business networks – NAAME, GNMG, Cambridge wireless
 Business Ambassadors – businesses in Thetford can support the campaign and 

communicate the key messages to their networks and supply chains
 Recruitment sites – job adverts
 Academic institutes – It is beneficial to promote Thetford as a low cost location 

to graduates, who may be looking for their next home and have flexibility as to 
where they can live

3. Contribution to Board Objectives
3.1 The delivery of a targeted marketing campaign will support the work of the Board and 

support work on the following Board Objectives:

 Achieve more through collaboration and coordination, to make life better for people in 
the Greater Thetford area.

 Encourage growth: by demonstrating our joint commitment to supporting the 
development of the Greater Thetford area as a great place to live, work and do 
business.

 Attract investment: by accessing grants and funding only available to partnerships, 
attracting inward investment to build the area into an East Anglian hub.

4. Recommendations

(i) It is recommended that the GTDP lead on the development and delivery of a 
marketing campaign targeted at attracting skilled workers to relocate to 
Thetford. The campaign will also be aiming to attract business investment, 
supporting wider Cambridge Norwich Tech Corridor and Locate:Norfolk 
initiatives.

18



    
(ii) If the Board is supportive, a full marketing and promotion business case can be 

presented at a future Board meeting for consideration.

5. Appendices

Appendix 1 : Background Paper

Officer Contact 

If you have any questions about matters contained in this paper please get in touch 
with:

Name Telephone Number Email address

Roberta Willner 01603 222710 roberta.willner@norfolk.gov.uk

19



1

Greater Thetford Development Partnership Board
9 April 2018
Item No. XX
Appendix 1             

Marketing & Promotion:
Attracting Skilled Workers and 

Investment to Thetford

1 Introduction

1.1 The Greater Thetford Development Partnership Officer Group is 
recommending a paper to the board for discussion on how better to promote 
the town, with a particular emphasis on ‘Attracting Skilled Workers/Talent’ to 
live in Thetford.  

1.2 It is important to set any initiatives within the context of broader campaigns 
and activity. There is ongoing work to promote The East (led by the LEP); 
Locate:Norfolk (led by Norfolk County Council); the Cambridge Norwich Tech 
Corridor (with specific resource to deliver this managed by the LEP) and a 
more tourist oriented campaign focussed on the “Brecks”, within which 
Thetford is central. 

1.3 The main focus on these initiatives is to raise the profile of the respective 
target area to attract investment. An additional benefit partners hope to deliver 
is to attract key staff to the area, thus raising the skills levels.

2 Promoting Growth Opportunities

2.1 Thetford is undergoing a period of extensive growth - providing high quality, 
well-connected and affordable housing and employment space. 

2.2 Thetford is the 4th largest settlement in Norfolk, 30 miles from Cambridge, 20 
miles from the nearest Norfolk town and 30 miles to the next largest (King’s 
Lynn or Norwich). Bury St Edmunds in Suffolk is nearer at just 15 miles. This 
proximity to economic centres presents further opportunity for workers and 
businesses to relocate to Thetford for an improved quality of life, combined 
with a low cost base, allowing a short commute to work. Businesses can 
benefit from the low cost per sqft of commercial space, combined with 
connectivity to London, Cambridge, Midlands and Norfolk from a central 
location.

20



2

2.3 It is hoped that by promoting the growth taking place in and around Thetford, 
the Greater Thetford Development Partnership can maximise the potential of 
these growth opportunities, attracting skilled workers and businesses to the 
area.

3 Housing Growth and Regeneration

3.1 There are major plans underway for growth and regeneration within Thetford 
– all of which need to be communicated effectively to encourage investment 
and relocation to the area.

3.2 Kings Fleet (also known as the Sustainable Urban Extension- SUE)

3.3 Kingsfleet will be a significant new development located on the northern 
edge of Thetford which comprises new homes and new facilities.

3.4 Adjoining the A11 for easy access and convenience, developer Pigeon's 
vision for Kingsfleet - formerly known as the Thetford Sustainable Urban 
Extension - is to create a thriving, sustainable community, with a wide 
range of high-quality new homes.

3.5 The development will include up to 5,000 homes, which will be developed 
in several phases, alongside an extensive range of community facilities 
including:

 Three new primary schools and a nursery
 A health centre
 High-frequency bus routes linking Kingsfleet to the town centre
 Generous public spaces and parkland
 Cycle and pedestrian routes
 Allotments
 A sports pitch
 48 acres of employment land

3.6 Thetford Riverside

3.7 The £8m Thetford Riverside complex will significantly improve the leisure 
offering in the town for both residents and visitors. It includes a brand 
new cinema, a hotel, and a series of restaurants. The regeneration of the 
site will also act as a catalyst for further development in the town and 
across the district.

3.8 The cinema, run by The Light, has three, fully licensed screens which 
all boast incredible 2D and 3D visuals with state of the art digital 
picture and sound. The cinema also has a café and bar.

21



3

3.9 National hotel chain Travelodge offers 64 attractive, modern bedrooms at 
the leisure complex. They are good value, making the hotel a good choice 
for those looking to stay in Thetford as part of a leisure break as well as 
those travelling to the area for business purposes.

4 Infrastructure

4.1 The A11 is fully dual carriageway and the corridor will see some of the largest 
scale growth planned in the county (at Thetford, Attleborough, Wymondham, 
Hethersett and the Norwich fringe at Cringleford).

4.2 A11 Express Way

4.3 Local authorities are currently working with DofT and Highways England to 
lobby for improved junctions along the A11, including the often congested 
Junctions at Thetford. 

4.4 The ambition is for the A11 to become an expressway – a new term 
classification of road between a motorway and a traditional dual carriageway 
to show a route that would flow faster than at present.

4.5 In the county council’s Norfolk Infrastructure Delivery Plan 2017-2027, the 
A11 Thetford bypass junctions are recognised as key infrastructure needed to 
deliver economic growth in the county.

4.6 Improvement measures to the A11 will also be provided as part of the 
Thetford Sustainable Urban Extension (SUE). The 5,000 homes development 
planned for northern outskirts of the town and would be close to the A11 
junction with the A1075

4.7 Improvement to the road infrastructure surrounding Thetford should be 
promoted outside of Norfolk, in order to raise awareness in the business 
community and for those looking to locate near (not in) economic centres. 

5. Commercial sites and Development Opportunities

5.1 As part of Thetford’s growth plans, employment sites have been allocated - a 
large employment area on King’s Fleet (SUE) and an adjacent large 
employment area known as the Thetford Enterprise Park. The two 
employment sites have a joint capacity for circa. 140,000sq m of B1, B2 and 
B8 development and potential to create 3,600 jobs.

5.2 This is a significant opportunity for developers and businesses to acquire 
commercial space at low cost, with excellent connectivity. Again, the 
opportunity needs to be communicated effectively to businesses. 

5.3 The wider growth plans between Cambridge and Norwich and surrounding 
areas also need to be communicated in this context, as businesses and 

22



4

workers relocating can see business and job opportunities near to Thetford as 
well.

5.4 Figure 1 shows housing growth, infrastructure projects and employment sites 
across Norfolk.

Figure 1 Housing Growth. Norfolk Infrastructure Delivery Plan 2017-27

6 Thetford as a ‘Feeder Town’ for Cambridge Workforce

6.1 Figure 2 is a map showing 20, 40, and 60km travel distances centred around 
Cambridge Science Park and Norwich Research Park, in order to illustrate the 
practical extent of the Greater Cambridge and Greater Norwich functional 
economic areas in the future.
 

6.2 Also shown on the map are major housing and employment developments. 
Any potential location within 30 minutes (about 40km) of Cambridge in 
particular, which is currently more spatially constrained than Norwich, should 
be considered an area with extremely strong growth potential.

23



5

Figure 2 Travel Distances from Cambridge and Norwich, CNTC Report 
Cambridge Econometrics 2018

6.3 Thetford, located at the approximate half-way point, has the opportunity to 
look in both directions at once, thanks to its prominent position on both the 
A11 and with rail links to both Cambridge and Norwich. 

6.4 It is centrally located, offering skilled workers the benefit of high quality, well-
connected and low cost housing, with short travel times to Cambridge, Bury St 
Edmunds or Norwich. Even London and Birmingham are just over an hour 
away.

6.5 The Cambridge Econometrics CNTC report described Thetford as a feeder 
town for Cambridge for the above reasons.

6.6 Cambridge has one of the greatest levels of net in-commuting with the 
workplace population 52.1% bigger than the resident working population 
(source: Towns and cities analysis, England and Wales, March 2016, Office of 
National Statistics).

6.7 A marketing campaign highlighting proximity and travel to work times, 
combined with cost comparisons of nearby centres such as Cambridge,

24



6

6.8 Norwich and Bury St Edmunds would help to maximise on the opportunities 
presented by Thetford’s housing growth and infrastructure improvements.

7 Key assets

7.1 As part of a marketing and promotion campaign, it is important to consider 
Thetford’s key assets – what makes it a truly desirable location for workers 
and businesses.

7.2 Low cost base

7.3 Although well connected, Thetford has a significantly lower cost base than 
neighbouring areas – and this does give it an edge as a commuter town. The 
low cost base makes it a desirable location for people working in major 
economic centres (such as Cambridge, Norwich, Bust St Eds or further 
afield). Younger workers in particular, who do not yet have the income to 
afford to live where they work.

Figure 3 
Average House Price Location 

£228,348 Thetford

£462,872 Cambridge

£323,795 Bury St Edmunds

£268,693 Norwich

Source: Zoopla 2018

7.4 Figure 3 shows the average house in Thetford, compared to that of 
Cambridge, Bury St Edmunds and Norwich. As shown, at £228,348, Thetford 
offers housing at less than half the cost of Cambridge.

7.5 Economic Strengths

7.6 Thetford has a number of economic strengths, which should be promoted as 
part of a marketing campaign: 

 Location and connectivity – Thetford is central to a number of large 
economic centres including Cambridge, Norwich, Bury St . Edmunds. 
Thetford is also not far from London Stansted and Birmingham.

 Low cost base-  low housing prices
 Low unemployment rate
 Manufacturing and engineering cluster
 Available employment sites
 Development opportunities

25



7

 Growth – Infrastructure and housing. Thetford has plans for 5,000 new 
homes and nearby Attleborough a further 4,000.  In Greater Norwich 
40,000 additional homes are expected to be built by 2026

 Tourism – this is a unique offering and brings many tourists to the area 
each year. Thetford has the largest lowland forests in the UK, a 
beautiful river and many heritage attractions. The Lifestyle offer for 
residents is particularly high.

7.7 Business Clusters

7.8 Thetford has several key sectors, but particularly the advanced manufacturing 
& engineering, and agri-tech sectors. Multimatic’s HQ is located in Thetford, 
and other international names such as Baxtor, Trox and Eastern Attachments 
base themselves in or near Thetford. 

7.9 These business clusters are supported by the nearby Hethel Engineering 
Centre and business networks such as the New Anglia Advanced 
Manufacturing and Engineering Group, and Greater Norwich Manufacturing 
Group.

7.10 Academic
Thetford businesses also benefit from a pipeline of engineering graduates 
from the University of East Anglia, and apprentices from the University 
Technical College Norwich, combined with: 

 Thetford Grammar – 95% attainment in A-C grades, one of the best 
private schools in the UK

 Thetford Academy – state of the art facilities, swimming pool 
 Wymondham College
 Cambridge University and the University of East Anglia both an hour 

away, public transport available

26



8

7.11 Leisure and Heritage

7.12 Thetford has a number of unique leisure and heritage offerings, which offer a 
fantastic quality of life to residents with these facilities on their doorstep. A 
marketing campaign should also including:

 The Brecks are home to unique Pingo lakes. They are the most 
distinctive feature of the Brecks landscape and give the impression of 
acacia trees on the African savannah. 

 Thetford Forest is the largest lowland pine forest in the country, at 
19,000 hectares (47,000 acres), 

 Thetford Forest is also home to High Lodge - a recreational site set in 
the heart of Thetford Forest offering extensive play areas, walking trails 
and cycling trails. There is a cafe, bike shop and hire, Go Ape Tree Top 
Adventure. 

 The forest is also home to Elveden Center Parcs.
 Concerts are also held in Thetford forest – it attracts shows from big 

names, such as Gary Barlow, Olly Murs, Kasabian, Simply Red, Rick 
Astley, Keane and the Script.

 the remains of the 12th century Thetford Abbey.
 Whilst walking through the market town of Thetford, it is impossible not 

to notice the beautiful historic infrastructure and many listed buildings.
 Scenic canoe trips to Brandon. Current scoping is taking place, 

focusing on the River Little Ouse and the reinvention of its riverside 
area could help attract more tourists to Thetford.

 Thetford offers a retail destination (and nearby shopping destinations in 
Cambridge, Bury St Eds and Norwich)

8 Proposal 

8.1 Considering the significant growth and associated opportunities, the GTDP 
Officer’s group would like to recommend a targeted marketing campaign is 
launched, with the focus of attracting skilled workers to live in Thetford. It is 
anticipated many will live in Thetford to commute to larger economic centres, 
but we will also promote the job opportunities in and around Thetford, with the 
ambition to attract more talent to work for local businesses.

8.2 The opportunities associated with great connectivity, allocated employment 
sites with development opportunities, combined with existing business 
clusters and networks also presents Thetford as an investable location for 
businesses. It is important that Thetford’s connectivity, low cost base and 
development opportunities are communicated effectively to potential investors 
as part of the campaign.

8.3 The marketing campaign will need to be targeted to ensure impact. It is 
suggested the Cambridge Norwich Tech Corridor is used as the lead brand 
for the campaign, as an established brand with wider support, although this 
can be assessed as part of a full business case for the campaign.

27



9

8.4 In order to focus the campaign, 5 main messages need to be promoted:

1. Location – proximity to economic centres, travel to work time
2. Low cost base and housing growth – cost comparisons, housing in 

Thetford 
3. Lifestyle offer – Thetford forest, Center Parcs, heritage offer, 

educational institutes, facilities, Cinema, river, amenities – rail & bus 
networks etc 

4. Business Clusters, networks and business hubs
5. Development opportunities – employment sites

8.5 Potential vehicles for promotion of the campaign will need to be assessed as 
part of the business case, but are likely to include:

 Business networks – NAAME, GNMG, Cambridge wireless
 Business Ambassadors – businesses in Thetford can support the 

campaign and communicate the key messages to their networks and 
supply chains

 Recruitment sites – job adverts
 Academic institutes – It is beneficial to promote Thetford as a low cost 

location to graduates, who may be looking for their next home and have 
flexibility as to where they can live

ENDS

28



Greater Thetford Development Partnership Board
9 April 2018

Item No xx               

Forward Plan and Workshop

Report of Richard Doleman, Chair Officer Group

Summary

This report proposes the board agree to preparation of a forward plan.  A draft forward 
plan is presented and it recommends the board hold a workshop session to further 
develop the plan. 

Recommendations 

(i) The board agree to the preparation of a forward plan

(ii) The Board agree to use its next meeting as a workshop session to develop 
the forward plan.

1. Introduction

1.1 The Greater Thetford Development Partnership Board has set itself six 
strategic objectives.  A forward plan for future meetings is good practice to 
allow identification and timing of future items to enable papers to be prepared 
and provide structured discussions and decisions to be made by the Board.  

1.2 This report sets out a draft forward plan for the board and invites discussion on 
development of a forward plan

2. Draft Forward Plan

2.1 The officer group has looked at the current activities and considered the recent 
discussion at the board to develop a draft forward plan of items for future board 
meetings.  A copy of the draft forward plan is attached as Appendix 1.

3. Development of the Forward Plan

A draft forward plan is proposed for discussion by the board.  To allow a full 
and proper consideration by the board it is recommended that the board use 
the date of the next Board meeting to hold a workshop session to develop and 
agree the forward plan.  

4. Contribution to Board Objectives

4.1 An agreed forward plan will help the board develop its work to support all six 
objectives.  

29

Agenda Item 6



5. Recommendations 
(i)  The Board agree to the preparation of a forward plan 

(ii) The Board agree to use its next meeting as a workshop session to develop 
the forward plan.

Officer Contact

If you have any questions about matters contained in this paper please get in touch 
with:

Name Telephone Number Email address

Richard Doleman 01603 223263 richard.doleman@norfolk.gov.uk

Appendices

Appendix 1 – Draft forward plan

30



Appendix 1

Greater Thetford Development Partnership Board

Draft Forward Plan 18/19

Date Title Lead
June 2018

Forward Plan workshop (Private 
session)

RD/RC/SCA

Health – delivery structure Presentation PM
Sept 2018

Highways England Presentation RD
Network Improvement Strategy  
Action Plan

Report DC

Marketing and promotion Report RW
Dec 2018

School Support Project Report JM
Network Rail Presentation DC

March 2019
Waste Water Treatment Works Report TC

31



Greater Thetford Development Partnership Board
9 April 2018
Item No. XX             

Officer Group Terms of Reference

Report of Richard Doleman, Chair, Officer Group

Summary
This report presents the Terms of Reference for an Officer Group to support the 
Greater Thetford Development Partnership Board (GTDPB).  The Board agreed at the 
last Board meeting that the Officer Group would replace the Planning and Projects and 
Inward Investment sub groups which are now considered disbanded.   

Recommendations 

(i) It is recommended that the proposed terms of reference for the Officer Group 
attached as Appendix 1are adopted.

(ii) The Board agrees to officers bringing any consequential changes to the 
GTDPB terms of reference, arising from the new Officer Group terms of 
reference, to a future Board meeting for approval. 

1. Introduction

1.1 At the Greater Thetford Development Partnership Board Meeting on 16 Feb the 
board agreed to the principles of setting up an Officer Group to support the 
work of the Board.  The Officer Group will replace the existing Inward 
Investment and Planning and Projects sub groups.  

2. Officer Group proposals

2.1 The Officer Group met on 23 February 2018 and considered the terms of 
reference for the group.  The draft Terms of Reference are attached at 
Appendix 1.  

2.2 The Terms of Reference remove the chair of the Officer Group from the Board.  
If agreed, then the terms of reference of the Board will need to reflect the 
changes in terms of its composition removing representation on the board of 
the Inward Investment and Planning and Projects sub groups.

3. Contribution to Board Objectives

3.1 The establishment of a revised officer group will support the work of the board 
and support work on all 6 Board Objectives. 

4. Recommendations 
(i) It is recommended that the proposed terms of reference for the 

Officer Group attached as appendix 1 be adopted.

(ii) The Board agrees to officers bringing any consequential changes 
to the GTDPB terms of reference arising from the new Officer 
Group terms of reference, to a future Board meeting for approval.    

32

Agenda Item 7a



Officer Contact 

If you have any questions about matters contained in this paper please get in touch 
with:

Name Telephone Number Email address

Richard Doleman 01603 223263 richard.doleman@norfolk.gov.uk

Appendix 1 : Officer Group Draft Terms of Reference

33



Greater Thetford Development Partnership

Officer Group

TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Officer Group is part of the Greater Thetford Development Partnership (GTDP) 
and will be governed by the GTDP’s Terms of Reference.

Aims/Objectives: 

Through consultation with key stakeholder support the aims and objectives of the 
GTDP board.   

Purpose:  

The purpose of the GTDP Officer Group is: -

1. To assist and support the GTDP to meet its aims and objectives.  

2. To collate information on projects for promotion and delivery in the Greater 
Thetford area and support the board to make recommendations on projects 
as a priority for funding and delivery. 

3. To identify planning and infrastructure barriers to growth and develop 
solutions to overcome process and delivery barriers as identified by the 
Officer Group or as directed by the GTDP Board; and,

4. To work with key planning and infrastructure delivery agencies across the 
greater Thetford area to ensure that there is coordinated and effective and 
engagement.  

34



Roles and Responsibilities: 

The primary roles and responsibilities of the GTDP Officer Group are: -

 To act as an advisory body to the GTDP Board to ensure effective 
engagement of the key stakeholders in the planning process and 
infrastructure relating to the growth and development of Thetford and 
surrounding parishes.  

 To develop a forward plan of activity to support GTDP ambitions for 
development of the area and prepare reports for the board to consider.    

 To oversee and report to the GTDP on the progress of the board’s agreed 
priorities.  

 To actively engage with the planning process to identify issues and consider 
solutions to secure necessary consents and approvals.  

 To identify wider delivery agencies and service providers and engage them as 
necessary for the identification and delivery and funding of projects to meet 
the board objectives.   

 To work closely with the Community Sub Group to assist in the development 
of community led projects.     

 To support the planned work of the GTDP Board.  

35



Membership: 

The membership of the GTDP Officer group will be made up of a standing group of 
officers from the Town Council, District Council and County Council.  Other officers 
will be invited from other bodies to join the work of the group on an as-needed basis.  
Such bodies may include, but not limited to, Highways England, the local CCG and 
Network Rail.  

The Chair of the Sub Group will be responsible for ensuring reports are prepared for 
consideration by the board, but is not a member of the board.  The Chair will be 
agreed by the Officer Group and reviewed annually. 

Membership will be reviewed annually or more often as necessary.  

Meetings: 

Scheduled meetings to tie in with the programme of GTDP Board meetings; however 
extraordinary meetings can be called at any time if deemed appropriate.   

The meetings to be held in private, with the meeting generating reports for the board 
and helping set the agenda and forward plan for the Board.  
The group will not make any formal decisions on behalf of the board or any partner 
organisation.

Decision Making:
 
As it is not formally constituted the Officer Group will not have delegated powers and 
will not make any formal decisions on behalf of the board or any partner 
organisation.   All recommendations from the Officer Group will require endorsement 
by the GTDP Board and the individual authorities that are represented on the Board. 

36



Greater Thetford Development Partnership Board
9 April 2018

Item No xx               

Recruitment of independent Communities Sub-Group members
Report of Robert Campbell, Officer Group

Summary

This report seeks Board approval for wording of the advertising copy for the four 
independent Communities Sub-Group members which are planned to be advertised in 
May.

Recommendations 

(i) The board approves the wording and proceeds with advertising for the four 
independent Communities Sub-Group members.

1. Introduction
At the last Board meeting on the 16 February, it was agreed to advertise the 
roles for the four independent members of the Communities Sub Group 
appropriately as part of the annual review of membership.

2. Advertising Wording (appendix 1)

The officer group has reviewed the previous advertising wording and has 
updated to place a greater emphasis on seeking members who are already 
well connected to existing local community groups, e.g. local housing tenants 
associations.

3. Selection

In line with the Community Sub-Group Terms of Reference, the final choice of 
independent members will be made by the three Town and Parish board 
members and the Chair of the Board.

4. Method and Timing

Officers have taken advice from Breckland Council’s Comms Team to ensure 
the advertising is as effective as possible.  In particular we are going to target 
existing community groups, e.g. local tenant’s associates, to find candidates 
already well connected to large numbers of local residents.
It is recommended that advertising runs through the entire month of May.

5. Contribution to Board Objectives

Contributes to all objectives.

6. Recommendations 
(i)  The board approves the wording and proceeds with advertising for the 

four independent Communities Sub Group members.

37

Agenda Item 7b



Officer Contact

If you have any questions about matters contained in this paper please get in touch 
with:

Name Telephone Number Email address

Robert Campbell 01362 656808 robert.campbell@breckland.gov.uk

Appendices

Appendix 1 - Draft advert copy

38



Advert [text only]

A CHANCE TO MAKE A REAL DIFFERENCE IN GREATER THETFORD

Do you live in Brettenham, Croxton, Kilverstone or Thetford?

Are you actively involved in your local community with a good network of local contacts?

Can you put forward ideas from the residents of the area you live in?  

Are you a positive individual who can work collaboratively?

The Greater Thetford Development Partnership is working on developing exciting projects to 
improve the lives of residents of Thetford and the parishes of Croxton and Brettenham & 
Kilverstone.  We are looking for community representatives to make sure future developments are 
shaped and supported by local people.

Preferred candidates are likely to be activity involved in an existing community group within Greater 
Thetford.

The Greater Thetford Development Partnership is a Strategic Partnership made up of 
representatives from County, District and Parish Councils.  If you volunteer you will have the chance 
to really influence how your local area develops.

Applicants to join the communities sub-group must be over 18. Shortlisted applicants will be invited 
to attend an informal interview.

To apply please complete and submit the application form to: robert.campbell@breckland.gov.uk

The closing date for applications is noon on the 31st of May 2018

39

mailto:robert.campbell@breckland.gov.uk

	Agenda
	2 Minutes and matters arising from the Board meeting held on 16 February 2018
	Minutes
	18 Highlight report
	Train Station Allotments update note FINAL
	Thetford Railway Station Improvements update note FINAL
	Update note regarding the growth proposals for schools in Thetford FINAL

	3 Communities Sub-Group Update
	5 Marketing and Promotion
	Greater Thetford Marketing and Promotion Appendix 1 FINAL

	6 Forward Plan and Workshop
	Draft Forward Plan Appendix 1 FINAL

	7a Terms of reference for the new GTDP Officer Group
	Officer Group ToR - Appendix 1 FINAL

	7b Recruitment of Independent community Sub-Group members
	Recruitment of Independent Communities Representatives - Appendix 1 FINAL


